
Deputy Leader 
 

Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 
Street, Rotherham.  S60  
2TH 

Date: Monday, 17 February 2014 

  Time: 8.30 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for Absence.  
  

 
4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 13th January, 2014 (herewith). (Pages 

1 - 3) 
  

 
5. System of Inspection - Trips and Slips on Housing owned Footpaths and 

Walkways (Officers to report)  
  

 
6. Crisis Loans (report herewith) (Pages 4 - 8) 
  

 
7. Cabinet Reports and Members' Issues (Directors to report).  
  

 
8. Exclusion of the Press and Public.  

 
The following items are likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 
public as being exempt under Paragraph 3  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006) (information relating to 
the financial or business affairs). 

 
9. Procurement of Annual Software Support and Maintenance from Northgate - 

Main Revenues and Benefits System (report herewith) (Pages 9 - 10) 
  

 
10. Procurement of Annual Software Support and Maintenance from Northgate - 

LHA Software (report herewith) (Pages 11 - 12) 
  

 
Extra Item:- 
 
E-learning Provision for Corporate Training and Adult Social Care (report herewith) 

 
 
11. Date and Time of the Next Meeting - Monday, 17th March, 2014 at 8.30 a.m.  
  

 

 



16N DEPUTY LEADER - 13/01/14

  

 
DEPUTY LEADER 
13th January, 2014 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Akhtar (in the Chair); Councillors Gosling and Sims. 

 

 
N38. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 16TH DECEMBER, 

2013  
 

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting held on 
16th December, 2013. 
 
Resolved:-  That the minutes of the meeting held on 16th December, 2013 
be approved as a correct record. 
 

N39. RESOURCES PERFORMANCE REPORT - CURRENT POSITION  
 

 Consideration was given to a report presented by Sue Wilson 
Performance and Quality Manager, which provided information on the 
current position statement on the performance of services that fit within 
the remit of the portfolio (previously part of the Resources Directorate).   
 
Performance reported was for the period ending 30th November, 2013 
and provided both achievements and any risks and issues. 
  
A summary of the key points, including highlights and achievements and 
issues/risks was provided in relation to each of the areas with attention 
drawn to:- 
 

• Delivery of Chartered Institute of Purchasing and Supply framework 
by Procurement. 

• Healthwatch Rotherham progress. 

• Publication of the Adult Social Care Outcome Framework. And 
Rotherham classed in top 3 of 15 regional councils 

• Media interest in the Lifestyle Survey. 

• Launch of the OFSTED new inspection framework in Children and 
Young People’s Service 

• Strengthening of the Online Services Team and the introduction of 
the Ganlake online system nearing completion. 

• Partnership working to address the issue of people in crisis for food. 

• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment new website. 

• Estimated loss of income to the local economy. 

• Council Tax collection rates. 

• Popularity of the Salary Sacrifice Schemes. 

• Installation of the VPN software. 

• Contract migration from Digital Region Ltd. 

• Rotherham’s lead on the judicial review on the Government’s 
allocation of European funding. 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



DEPUTY LEADER - 13/01/14 17N

  

 
 
Discussion ensued on the content of the report with questions and queries 
raised on:- 
 
- Delivery against commissioning priorities. 
- Expectations on Healthwatch and management of Health and 

Wellbeing work programme. 
- Key performance measures rental collection and the impact of 

Housing Benefit changes. Key statistics for this to be included in 
future reports. 

- Monitoring of the online channel shift to help deliver a customer-
focused approach to the website. 

- Senior Marking Officer vacant position. 
- Synopsis of the loss of income to the local economy report published 

by Sheffield University. 
- Close monitoring of the migration timetable for the IT circuits to the 

new providers. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the report be received and the performance noted. 
 
(2)  That the inclusion of various elements be included in future reports 
and the information requested disseminated. 
 

N40. CABINET REPORTS AND MEMBERS' ISSUES  
 

 Phil Howe, Director of Human Resources, reported on:- 
 

• Potential strike action at Abbey School, which may have an impact 
on the delivery of education this week. 

• Voluntary severance update – 91 staff have been approved to leave, 
with a further 60 awaiting decision.  A further 90 were turned down 
on the grounds of service delivery. 

• Discussions with Trades Unions were positive and remained 
ongoing. 

• The Council was in the running for two awards – one for Public 
Health and a Heart Town nomination and the other for the Public to 
Public Relationship for the H.R. Shared Service with Doncaster. 

• Other Shared service opportunities would continue to be explored. 
 
Richard Copley, Corporate ICT Manager, reported on work which was 
underway to review the ICT needs of Elected Members with a  view to 
ensuring that Members were provided with ICT tools which best assisted 
them in fulfilling their roles. An update would be submitted to the next 
meeting of the Deputy Leader. 
 
Stuart Booth, Director of Finance, reported on the three reports that were 
being submitted for consideration to Cabinet on the 15th January, 2014 – 
namely Council Tax, National Domestic Rates and budget monitoring.  A 
Cabinet/SLT meeting was also scheduled for Tuesday, 14th January, 2014 
regarding the current budget process. 

Page 2



18N DEPUTY LEADER - 13/01/14

  

 
 
Resolved:-  That the information be noted. 
 

N41. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 Resolved:-  That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act (as amended March, 2006 (information 
relates to finance and business affairs). 
 

N42. PROCUREMENT OF ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUPPORT AND 
MAINTENANCE FROM CIVICA  
 

 Consideration was given to a report presented by Stuart Booth, Director of 
Finance, which confirmed that to enable the Council to ensure ongoing 
use and reliability of the Civica Electronic Document Management and 
Workflow System functionality from 1st April, 2014 to 31st March, 2015, 
there was a need to have a Support and Maintenance agreement with the 
software supplier.  
 
Maintaining the reliability of Civica was essential in maintaining an 
excellent customer service in the administration of benefits, ensuring 
efficient billing of Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates and ensuring that 
income collection was maximised. 
 
Exemption from Standing Orders for procuring this software support and 
maintenance was, therefore, sought as the provision of the document 
management and workflow software support could only be supplied by 
Civica. 
 
Resolved:-  That the contract for the purchase of annual support and 
maintenance for the Civica System be exempt from the provisions of 
Standing Order 47.6.3 (requirement to invite at least three written 
quotations for contracts with a value of £20k but less than £50k) and that 
the purchase be made from Civica. 
 

N43. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 

 Resolved:-  That the next meeting take place on Monday, 17th February, 
2014 at 9.30 a.m. 
 

 

Page 3



 1

 

1.  Meeting: Deputy Leader 

2.  Date: 17th February, 2014 

3.  Title: Crisis Loans   

4.  Directorate: Environment and Development Services 

 
5. Summary:   

The current contract to provide crisis loans to vulnerable people that are Rotherham 
residents will end on the 31st March, 2014.   
 
RMBC established the loan budget as part of the “fund for change” on the 1st April, 
2013 and this provided the opportunity to offer a ‘crisis loan’ service in conjunction with 
other initiatives operated by RMBC aimed at supporting individuals and families that 
require financial support. “Fund for change” was established using Local Welfare 
Provision funding from the Government. This was allocated to local authorities to 
provide support to people following their abolition of loans and grants through the 
“discretionary social fund”. 
 
LASER Credit Union is currently providing the crisis loan service.  Applications for 
loans are received through the Council’s Customer Service Centre who assess the 
individual’s eligibility for a crisis loan. Those eligible are then referred to LASER to 
complete the process.   
 
It is proposed that the current contract with LASER Credit Union is extended for a 
further year, 1st April, 2014 until 31st March, 2015. Having carefully considered the 
options in relation to providing a crisis loan service, it is felt that extending the existing 
contract with a contract variation as opposed to commissioning a new service is the 
better option.  This is mainly because of the lack of service providers in the market that 
could meet the service requirements.  Also the social fund is to end in 2015 and this 
will make any expressions of interest to deliver this service even less attractive. LASER 
Credit Union is well established and providing the crisis loan service and are able to 
adapt to the changes proposed in the contract variation for 2014/15.   
 
The proposal to extend the contract with LASER for a further year has been discussed 
with Legal Services and given the circumstances detailed above; approval has been 
given to waive standing orders.  
 
The Deputy Leader is requested to waive standing order 47 which is the requirement to 
commission services over the value of £50,000.  Approval of this request will enable 
the existing contract with LASER to be extended for a full year with a contract variation 
without the requirement to tender the service. 

 
6. Recommendations 

 
The Deputy Leader is recommended to: 
6.1 exempt the provision of Crisis Loans from Standing Order 47 (contracts 

valued at more than £50,000 should be commissioned) in line with 
standing order 38 (exemptions).   

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 
Agenda Item 6Page 4



 2

7. Proposals and Details 
  
7.1 Background 
  
Rotherham MBC established the loan budget as part of the “fund for change” on the 1st April, 
2013 using Local Welfare Provision funding from the Government, allocated following their 
abolition of crisis support through the “discretionary social fund”. 
 
The fund for change, RMBC’s local welfare provision scheme, enabled interest free loans to 
be provided to people in Rotherham needing urgent financial assistance. This service was 
provided in conjunction with other initiatives operated by RMBC aimed at supporting 
vulnerable individuals and families in Rotherham that require financial support.   
 
The provision of crisis loans is part of RMBC’s commitment to ensure people in crisis receive 
timely, holistic support to address their immediate needs and trying to prevent problems from 
reoccurring.  
 
A contract was awarded to LASER Credit Union Ltd. on the 18th March, 2013 for originally six 
months and following approval by the Deputy Leader, this contract was extended for a further 
six months until the 31st March, 2014. 
 
LASER is a not-for-profit social enterprise and is authorised by the Financial Conduct 
Authority and regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority and the Financial Conduct 
Authority.  
 
Given this contract will end on the 31st March, 2014, consideration has been given to the 
contract requirements from the 1st April, 2014 onwards in line with the demand for the service 
and the fact that the local welfare provision funding from central government will end in 2015 
and it is unclear yet whether this funding will be replaced with anything similar.  
 
7.2 Current Crisis Loan Service Description and Performance  

Individual applicants need to be able to demonstrate the reasons why they require a crisis 
loan and that other options have been exhausted.  RMBC Customer Service Centre currently 
assesses the individual’s request and the affordability of repayment. Once completed and a 
decision is made to offer the loan, the individual is referred to LASER.   

The minimum income accepted under the crisis loan scheme is £71 per week. If the individual 
is not already a member, LASER are required to seek proof of identify and proof of address 
from the individual and to verify the information provided.  LASER charges a £2 membership 
fee for each new member and this is paid for by RMBC.  The applicant is required to sign the 
loan agreement and agree an affordable repayment plan. A condition of the loan is that at 
least one of the customer’s named benefits will be paid into the customer’s LASER account 
(whilst ever the loan is outstanding) to meet repayments.  

The minimum amount of a crisis loan is £40 and the maximum amount is £250. An individual 
can only receive a maximum of 1 crisis loan in a 12 month rolling period through the crisis 
support Fund for Change and cannot access a second loan until the first loan has been 
repaid.  No interest will be charged on the first crisis loan.   

LASER will encourage applicants to save money, which will assist them in managing their 
own budget more efficiently and therefore be less dependent on crisis loans in the future.  
 

Page 5



 3

If an applicant falls into arrears, they will be charged £5 by LASER for an arrears letter. 
LASER currently provide RMBC with monthly monitoring Information, including loans 
processed and loans in arrears. RMBC and LASER will then assess the individual 
circumstances and the level of arrears before determining whether any further referral to 
Rossendales (debt collecting agency) or the DWP’s ELDS (Eligible Loan Deduction Scheme) 
scheme is pursued.  

The target number of loans to be provided within the contract was 72 loans per week or 3,744 
per year. As at 31st December, 2013 a total of 1,189 loans had been granted for a total sum of 
£149,744. 

The reasons for the loans were:- 

Reason Number Value 

Food and Bills 836 £91,572 

Electrical equipment 95 £18,560 

Rent/Mortgage Arrears 58 £11,991 

Emergency Cash 68 £8,863 

Lost/Stolen Money 72 £7,750 

Furniture 38 £6,998 

Other 22 £4,010 

 1,189 £149,744 

Based on a monthly average of 132 loans per month with an average value of £126 the 
projected spend on the loans for the full year would be £199,584 from £1,584 loans.  

The percentage of the overall loan value repaid currently stands at 30.41% and it is 
anticipated this will improve even further.  The annual repayment rate is estimated at 35% 
against the overall projected loan figure of £199,584, providing an estimated annual 
repayment figure of £69,854. 

7.3 Request for Waiver of Standing Orders 

The preferred option in terms of delivering the crisis loan service for 2014/15 is to extend the 
existing contract with LASER.  Therefore a waiver of standing orders is required and is 
requested for the following reasons:- 

1. LASER has established the crisis loan provision in addition to their usual business of 
providing savings accounts and affordable loans. They now have a greater 
understanding of the client group they are providing loans to for the ‘crisis loans’ 
contract and the potential volatile situations that can occur. 

2. A good working relationship with LASER has been developed and will enable flexibility 
in the delivery of the contract to continue to meet the needs of vulnerable people in 
Rotherham. 

3. A requirement of the contract is that the provider must be an established credit union 
with access to the service being available locally in the town centre. There is only one 
other existing credit union in Rotherham and this is Rothersave.  It is however 
recognised that an existing provider could set up in Rotherham, although the length of 
the contract may make this unattractive. 

Page 6



 4

4. Given the funding will end in 2015, the contact can only be for one year making it even 
less likely to attract any potential new providers especially given the uncertainty about 
the future provision and funding.  

5. Given any tendering exercise is unlikely to attract any other suitable or experienced 
provider, it is felt that the time it would take and the resources required to facilitate the 
tendering process would not benefit the crisis loan provision. 

6. Although there is a risk to not tendering any existing service and by not doing so could 
result in a challenge from a provider that feels they should have been given the 
opportunity to tender for the service, the risk is felt to be low given the very low number 
of credit unions that exist, the requirement for a local Rotherham base, plus the 
uncertainty around the funding beyond 2015. 

7.4 Contract Variation Requirements 2014/15 
 
The original contract with LASER was to provide 72 loans per week.  The actual 
number of loans provided and the average loan amount has been monitored by the 
Fund for Change Manager.  It is clear that the demand for crisis loans was not as 
originally anticipated or alternative crisis funding is been sought by individuals.   
 
It is proposed that the crisis loan provision for 2014/15 continues but with some 
variation to the existing contact.  This will include a reduction in the target number of 
loans to be provided based on the actual number provided during 2013/14. Value will 
be added to the contract by LASER taking on the responsibility for providing financial 
advice to each individual approved for a crisis loan to hopefully prevent the crisis 
situation reoccurring. This will not be debt advice as this provision already exists but 
more related to helping the individual manage their money enabling them to pay their 
bills and potentially save money as well. 
 
It is also proposed at this stage that RMBC Customer Service Centre will continue to 
check the individual’s eligibility for a crisis loan and that they can repay the loan before 
referring on to LASER to process the request. 
 
Allocating an average cost per individual loan is to be determined to make the 
administrative process more efficient.  Such costs relate to the administration of the 
loan and collection of the repayments and include the cost of a letter to individuals 
about non-payment, cost of a referral letter to DWP to enable repayments to be made 
through individual’s benefits, costs of a referral letter to debt collectors (if necessary) 
and the £2 membership fee for the individual to become a member of the credit union.  
RMBC also pays the interest that LASER would have charged for a loan, to enable the 
crisis loan to the individual to be interest free with no additional costs to be incurred by 
them which would not help the situation in terms of the original need for a crisis loan.   

 
7.5 Contractual Arrangements and Review  
 

In line with usual commissioning practice, there will be a contract between RMBC and 
LASER Credit Union for 12 months which will include a contract variation in line with 
the above.  The usual contract review meetings will be held to monitor performance 
and determine the success of the service.  It is anticipated that the contract will be 
reviewed after 6 months to analyse the take up of crisis loans and whether the financial 
advice provided is having an affect.  If necessary a further contract variation to ensure 
the service continues to respond to the needs of vulnerable people may be required 

Page 7



 5

and hopefully this will coincide with some notification from central government about 
any replacement of the social fund and what the criteria of such funding may be.    
 

8. Finance 

Based on the current average of 132 loans per month being provided with an average 
value of £126 the projected spend on the loans for the full year would be £199,584 
from £1,584 loans.  

A cost per loan is to be determined and this is estimated to be approximately £62.00 
per loan.  This cost per loan includes staffing costs (including 15 minutes financial 
advice), overheads and administrative costs such as membership fees, arrears letters 
to individuals, referral letter to DWP.  The cost per loan does not include interest to be 
paid or any referrals to debt collection agency (if required).  Therefore the cost for the 
year is estimated to be £98,208 to provide 1,584 loans.  Of course these costs could 
vary depending on the number of loans requested and approved over the year   

9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 

Not undertaking a competitive tendering process could result in some challenge from a 
service provider who currently provides similar services about the decision to award 
the contract. This risk is felt to be low.     

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

The provision of crisis loans relates to the community strategy priority around 
supporting those who are vulnerable in our community. 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 None. 
  
 
 
Contact Name:   
Carole Haywood, Partnerships and Policy Manager  
Planning Regeneration and Cultural services  
Environmental and Developmental Services  
 
Chrissy Wright, Strategic Commissioning Manager 
Strategic Commissioning  
Neighbourhood and Adult Services  

  

Page 8



Agenda Item 9 Page 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 10 Page 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



1 

 

 

 

 

1.  Meeting: Deputy Leaders meeting 

2.  Date: 17th February 2014 

3.  Title: E-learning Provision for Corporate Training and Adult 
Social Care 

4.  Directorate: Resources 

 
 
5. Summary 
 
The Council has successfully developed its offering of training available as e-
learning over the last few years. This has been provided by Learning Pool, and was 
originally commissioned via the Local Government Association on behalf of 
participating Councils. The marketplace for e-learning platforms and learning 
resources has developed significantly in recent years. It is intended to commence a 
procurement exercise in 2014 for future e-learning provision. This report seeks 
approval for exemption from normal contract standing orders to continue Learning 
Pool provision during 2014 whilst the procurement exercise is completed. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
6.1 That the contracting of e-learning (both Corporate and Adult Social Care 
packages) be exempt from standing order 47.6.3 for 2014. 
6.2 That a procurement process be undertaken during 2014 to secure the most 
appropriate and cost-effective package of e-learning for the whole Council 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda AnnexPage 13



2 

 

 
7. Proposals and Details 
 
For the last five years the Council has contracted its Corporate and Adult Social 
Care e-learning resources via contract with Learning Pool. This has enabled access 
to a developing e-learning platform and also a catalogue of learning materials 
developed specifically for local government. Members of the Learning Pool 
community also share resources that they develop themselves. 
 
The marketplace for e-learning has developed dramatically over the last few years 
and more recently Children’s and Young Peoples Services have also contracted 
separate e-learning resources via an alternative provider. 
 
A number of attempts in the last two years have been made to progress joint 
commissioning of e-learning with neighbouring Councils and also more broadly 
amongst the adult social care community. To date these have not been successful. 
 
Given the more developed marketplace and an increasingly inflexible approach to 
contract and pricing being experienced from Learning Pool, it is proposed to 
complete a procurement exercise during 2014 to seek provision of both an e-learning 
platform and learning materials. Any procurement exercise would be open for other 
Councils to participate in. 
 
It had been intended to complete a procurement exercise during 2013, however, this 
has been delayed as a result of needing to clarify legal issues relating to the 
intellectual property rights of the current learning materials the Council has authored 
or tailored. This has now been satisfactorily resolved. Options for utilising other 
Council frameworks for contracting have also been reviewed, but there is not an 
open framework available at this time. 
 
It is estimated that it could take around six months to complete a procurement 
exercise. Current contracts with Learning Pool for both resources expire in March 
2014. Approval is sought for the contracting of Learning Pool for 1 year only, with 
price frozen at the 2013 rate (agreed with Learning Pool). 
 
8. Finance 
 
The current (2013) contract prices for the two platforms are £14,000 per annum for 
the Adult Social Care platform and £9,500 per annum for the corporate platform. An 
understanding has been secured with Learning Pool to maintain this price if a 1 year 
extension to contract is provided. Any future procurement would also consider the 
option of a shared platform and selective material purchase in order to minimise 
costs. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Council employees have become accustomed to the use of e-learning, which is a 
very cost-effective medium for certain types of learning. The rising subscription 
levels experienced from the current provider and the more developed marketplace 
evidence the need to undertake a competitive procurement process for future 

Page 14



3 

 

provision. The intellectual property rights to any e-learning modules authored or 
tailored by the Council belong with the Council, so there is no risk of loss of 
developed resources. Consideration of a new provider would include the breadth of 
learning materials available from each provider. 
The Social Care e-learning site also gives access to the independent sector and 
partner organisations such as health to enable the Director of Adult Social Services 
to support the entire adult social care workforce in Rotherham and health economy 
workers to access safeguarding adults and MCA training. Non-extension of the 
current contract would put this at risk until the tender is complete. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The continued provision of e-learning resources to the workforce enables their 
continued development at a time when budgets are under pressure. There is a need 
to continually develop the workforce to meet new challenges and a statutory 
responsibility to develop the social care workforce to the required competency. 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Consultation has taken place with colleagues in procurement and experience from a 
recent tendering exercise by the Greater Manchester Authorities is being used to 
inform the procurement process. 
 
 
 
Contact Name :  Tracey Parkin, HR Manager 
   Ext. 23742 
   Email: tracey.parkin@rotherham.gov.uk 
 

Page 15


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 13th January, 2014 (herewith).
	6 Crisis Loans (report herewith)
	9 Procurement of Annual Software Support and Maintenance from Northgate - Main Revenues and Benefits System (report herewith)
	10 Procurement of Annual Software Support and Maintenance from Northgate - LHA Software (report herewith)
	E-learning Provision for Corporate Training and Adult Social Care (report herewith)

